COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY OTSEGO COUNTY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION

AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE AUGUST 11TH, 2022 MEETING MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER

The COIDA and OCCRC's joint Audit & Finance Committee meeting was called to order at 8:00am at the Otsego Now offices at 189 Main Street in Oneonta, NY. Members were given the option to attend inperson or virtually (v). Members present included:

Jeffrey Lord (v) Cheryl Robinson Tom Armao David Rowley Craig Gelbsman (v)** Andrew Marietta (v)*

Also, in attendance:

STAFF

Jody Zakrevsky, **CEO**Meaghan Marino, **Dir. of Finance and Admin.**Kurt Schulte, **Agency Counsel**

CHAIR'S COMMENTS

J. Lord, Chair of the Audit & Finance Committee, welcomed committee members and staff, and moved immediately into the agenda.

MEETING MINUTES

J. Lord requested a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the July 14th Audit & Finance Committee meeting. Members were given the draft minutes prior to the meeting for review. There not being a quorum at the start of the meeting, members waited until C. Gelbsman arrived prior to voting on the minutes. There being no corrections, D. Rowley made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. C. Robinson seconded the motion, and it was approved by remaining members.

^{*}arrived after start of meeting.

^{**}departed before end of meeting.

PAYMENT OF BILLS

- J. Lord reviewed the bills and deposits made since the July Board meeting. Committee members received a report of the expenses and deposits prior to the meeting to review. D. Rowley questioned a payment to Controlled Tree Cut for tree removal on 9 Shaffer Ave. in the City of Oneonta. M. Marino explained that this property borders the rail yards and that branches fell on the resident's fence during a storm. This has happened in the past to the same fence. J. Lord asked if Controlled Tree Cut noticed other limbs that needed to come down to avoid this happening again. M. Marino reminded the board that the first time they went to the house they advised that three trees should come down at a cost of \$6,000. She advised that she could get further estimates. J. Lord had a question about a \$585 payment to Fyr-Fyter for 24hr. alarm monitoring at 139 Commerce Road. He asked if this was an annual fee and M. Marino confirmed that it is. J. Lord also asked about a \$200 payment to Upstate Leadership for sponsorship for the TedXOneonta event. M. Marino advised that we have sponsored this even for the last few years.
- C. Robinson made a motion to approve paying the expenses presented to the committee. D. Rowley seconded the motion, and it was approved by remaining members.

REVIEW OF FINANCIALS

J. Zakrevsky reviewed his YTD budget for the committee. C. Robinson had a question on the formatting of the budget. Under the "YTD" column it shows that \$103,181.78 has been brought in for charge of services, however, it doesn't show where that money came from on the line items. She asked for this to be updated to see what is outstanding before year end. She also asked if J. Zakrevsky has any concerns with the budget or current revenue stream. J. Zakrevsky advised that he feels good about this year, as the agency is still waiting on \$150,000 reimbursement from Empire State Development and \$75,000 for this year's appropriation from the County. D. Rowley asked about the potential PILOT for the Hartwick College solar panel project and if that would be moving forward. J. Zakrevsky advised that there had been discussions with the company about the PILOT, but after changes were made to the state law regarding solar, there was an issue between the company's attorneys and the construction company. As of February, 2022, J. Zakrevsky has not heard from the company on this PILOT, but advised that the Hartwick College consultant he was working with claims that the college is moving forward with the project. D. Rowley asked if the solar project would have a positive impact on the 2023 budget. J. Zakrevsky advised that he has not included any potential solar projects in the 2023 project, but if the Hartwick College project, or other solar projects, moved forward, it would be great for the 2023 budget.

NEW AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

• 2023 IDA Budget – J. Zakrevsky advised that he has begun work on the 2023 budget for the IDA which, as of now, shows a deficit of about \$60,000. He reminded the board that he has requested an increased appropriation from the County for next year, which could fill that gap. A. Marietta suggested presenting the deficit to the County's IGA Committee and, ultimately, to the County board, so that it's clear to the County that an increased appropriation would help the budget. He advised that he hasn't been able to get a sense from other county board members what their feelings are on the increased allotment request. D. Rowley suggested that IDA board members attend the IGA and County Board meetings to help J. Zakrevsky make his case. J. Lord cautioned against going into the County Board meeting and presenting a budget that shows a deficit, because you don't want to set a precedent that, moving forward, the County Board might want to base

- their yearly allocation on the performance of the agency's budget. It would be more beneficial to the agency to have a pre-determined amount no matter if the budget is in the positive or the negative.
- IDA Business Parks The conversation on the 2023 budget led T. Armao to bring up best practices for the IDA's business parks and if the agency can do an analysis on where the parks stand amongst competing parks – what are our advantages and weaknesses. He noted the limits of our gas and electric supply, but he also noted our hospitals, interstates, and airports. He asked about the advantages/weakness of other IDA parks and if there is an industry that we're better equipped to compete for. C. Robinson expressed understanding T. Armao's thoughts but asked how one would compare when it's never "apples to apples" when it comes to resources. She also recalled an assessment done through strategic planning, prior to J. Zakrevsky as CEO, that noted the assets and resources of the IDA's parks, and questioned if there had been any comparison in that plan. J. Zakrevsky advised that T. Armao brought this issue to him several days ago and he had begun working on a list of the disadvantages of the parks. C. Robinson suggested focusing on what our parks do have and targeting industries looking for those needs. The conversation went back to the County budget, when J. Zakrevsky advised that the funding the IDA is requested from the County is for the IDA's operating budget and will have nothing to do with making the business parks competitive. C. Gelbsman added that what we're currently doing isn't working and that the IDA needs to change its way of reaching out to people and that staff needs to be more aggressive in their approach to find businesses to fill the parks. He also suggested hiring real estate agents to help bring in businesses to fill vacant properties. C. Robinson noted that with a board of this caliber and experience level, everyone comes with different strategies and approaches and, ultimately, it comes down to J. Zakrevsky to provide the vision and the plan.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

D. Rowley made a motion to enter executive session with committee members only, under the Public Officers Law, Article 7, Open Meetings Law Section 105, at 8:39am for the following reasons: To discuss the financial history of an outstanding loan with the agency. T. Armao seconded the motion, and it was approved by all committee members present. The committee entered executive session at 8:39am.

There was no action taken in executive session.

D. Rowley made a motion to enter back into public session; C. Robinson seconded, and all members approved. The committee exited executive session at 9:01am.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, D. Rowley made a motion to adjourn the Audit & Finance committee meeting at 9:02am.

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE

The next Audit & Finance Committee meeting is September 8th, 2022 at 8:00am.